FRENCH IMMERSION KINDERGARTEN IN ALBERTA



A HANDBOOK FOR PARENTS



ALBERTA EDUCATION CATALOGUING IN PUBLICATION DATA

Alberta. Alberta Education.

French immersion. Kindergarten in Alberta: a handbook for parents.

ISBN 978-1-4601-0385-2 (online)

This publication is be available online at: http://education.alberta.ca/media/6766889/handbookfrimmkindergarten.pdf

1. Education -- Alberta -- Curricula -- Handbooks, manuals, etc. 2. Kindergarten -- Alberta -- Curricula -- Handbooks, manuals, etc. 7. Éducation -- Alberta -- Programmes d'études -- Guides, manuels, etc. 8. Éducation préscolaire -- Alberta -- Programmes d'études -- Guides, manuels, etc. I. Title.

LB1564 C2 A333 2012 375.213

For further information, contact:

French Language Education Services
Alberta Education
9th Floor, 44 Capital Boulevard Building
10044 – 108 Street NW
Edmonton, Alberta T5J 5E6
Telephone: 780–427–2940 in Edmonton or
toll-free in Alberta by dialing 310-0000

Fax: 780-422-1947

E-mail: DEF@edc.gov.ab.ca

Several Web sites are listed in this document. These sites are listed as a service only to identify potentially useful ideas for teaching and learning. Alberta Education is not responsible for maintaining these external sites, nor does the listing of these sites constitute or imply endorsement of their content. The responsibility to evaluate these sites rests with the user.

Note: All Web site addresses were confirmed as accurate at the time of publication but are subject to change.

Copyright © 2012, the Crown in Right of Alberta, as represented by the Minister of Education. Alberta Education, French Language Education Services, 9th Floor, 44 Capital Boulevard Building, 10044 – 108 Street NW, Edmonton, Alberta, Canada, T5J 5E6.

Permission is given by the copyright owner to reproduce this handbook for educational purposes and on a nonprofit basis.

Table of Contents

Velco	me to French immersion kindergarten in Alberta	1
1.	What is kindergarten in Alberta?	1
2.	What is French immersion?	2
3.	What distinguishes the French immersion kindergarten program from the regular kindergarten program?	
4.	What can we expect to see in our child's first year in French immersion?	3
5.	How can we prepare our child for French immersion?	4
Vhat	are young children like?	5
1.	Social Development	5
2.	Physical Development	5
3.	Intellectual Development	5
4.	Creative Development	6
5.	Emotional Development	6
low c	o children learn in French immersion kindergarten?	7
	do children learn in French immersion kindergarten?	
Fr	ench Language Arts (Early Literacy)	9
Fr		9
Fr Ea	ench Language Arts (Early Literacy)	9 10
Fr Ea Our C	ench Language Arts (Early Literacy)	9 10
Fr Ea Our C	ench Language Arts (Early Literacy)	10 10
Fr Ea Our C 1. 2.	ench Language Arts (Early Literacy)	10 10 10
Fr Ea Our C 1. 2.	ench Language Arts (Early Literacy) Irly Learning Skills How and Why is children's learning assessed in kindergarten? If my child has special needs, how will the French immersion kindergarten program meet these needs? How will the French immersion kindergarten program prepare my child for Grade 1?	910101010
Fr Ea Our C 1. 2.	ench Language Arts (Early Literacy) Irly Learning Skills hild's Personal Needs and Progress How and why is children's learning assessed in kindergarten? If my child has special needs, how will the French immersion kindergarten program meet these needs? How will the French immersion kindergarten program prepare my child for Grade 1? How can parents be involved?	91010101011
Fr Ea Our C 1. 2.	ench Language Arts (Early Literacy) Irly Learning Skills hild's Personal Needs and Progress	101010101012
Fr Ea Our C 1. 2.	ench Language Arts (Early Literacy) Irly Learning Skills hild's Personal Needs and Progress How and why is children's learning assessed in kindergarten? If my child has special needs, how will the French immersion kindergarten program meet these needs? How will the French immersion kindergarten program prepare my child for Grade 1? How can parents be involved? AT SCHOOL AT HOME	9101010111212
Fr Ea Our C 1. 2. 3. 4.	ench Language Arts (Early Literacy) Irly Learning Skills hild's Personal Needs and Progress How and why is children's learning assessed in kindergarten? If my child has special needs, how will the French immersion kindergarten program meet these needs? How will the French immersion kindergarten program prepare my child for Grade 1? How can parents be involved? AT SCHOOL AT HOME AFTER THE KINDERGARTEN DAY	910101011121213
Fr Ea Our C 1. 2. 3. 4.	ench Language Arts (Early Literacy) Irly Learning Skills hild's Personal Needs and Progress How and why is children's learning assessed in kindergarten? If my child has special needs, how will the French immersion kindergarten program meet these needs? How will the French immersion kindergarten program prepare my child for Grade 1? How can parents be involved? AT SCHOOL AT HOME	1010101011121213
Fr Ea Our C 1. 2. 3. 4.	ench Language Arts (Early Literacy) Irly Learning Skills How and Why is children's learning assessed in kindergarten? If my child has special needs, how will the French immersion kindergarten program meet these needs? How will the French immersion kindergarten program prepare my child for Grade 1? How can parents be involved? AT SCHOOL AT HOME AFTER THE KINDERGARTEN DAY Where can I find more information? Information Regarding the Alberta Human Rights Act	101010111212131415
Fr Ea Our C 1. 2. 3. 4.	ench Language Arts (Early Literacy) Irly Learning Skills How and Why is children's learning assessed in kindergarten? If my child has special needs, how will the French immersion kindergarten program meet these needs? How will the French immersion kindergarten program prepare my child for Grade 1? How can parents be involved? AT SCHOOL AT HOME AFTER THE KINDERGARTEN DAY Where can I find more information? Information Regarding the Alberta Human Rights Act	10101010111212131415
Fr Ea Our C 1. 2. 3. 4. 5. Apper	ench Language Arts (Early Literacy) Irly Learning Skills Inlid's Personal Needs and Progress. How and why is children's learning assessed in kindergarten? If my child has special needs, how will the French immersion kindergarten program meet these needs? How will the French immersion kindergarten program prepare my child for Grade 1? How can parents be involved? AT SCHOOL AT HOME AFTER THE KINDERGARTEN DAY. Where can I find more information? Information Regarding the Alberta Human Rights Act Indices. Inferences between the French immersion program and the Francophone program	10101010121213141516
Fr Ea Our C 1. 2. 3. 4. 5. Apper 2. Qu	ench Language Arts (Early Literacy) Irly Learning Skills How and Why is children's learning assessed in kindergarten? If my child has special needs, how will the French immersion kindergarten program meet these needs? How will the French immersion kindergarten program prepare my child for Grade 1? How can parents be involved? AT SCHOOL AT HOME AFTER THE KINDERGARTEN DAY Where can I find more information? Information Regarding the Alberta Human Rights Act	91010101112131515



Welcome to French immersion kindergarten in Alberta

1. What is kindergarten in Alberta?

Kindergarten: a program of choice for parents of children under six years of age In Alberta, parents decide if their child will participate in kindergarten or other programs provided for children who are under 6 years of age, as of September 1. Most children enter the kindergarten program one year before entry into Grade 1. The local school board sets the policies for age of entry into Grade 1. Children with special education needs may be enrolled in an early childhood services (ECS) program from two-and-a-half years old.

A rite of passage

Entering kindergarten is an exciting time for every child. Moving from the home environment to the school environment is a rite of passage. For the child entering French immersion kindergarten, this not only marks the start of school but also the beginning of learning in French. Both parents and teachers want this transition to be as smooth as possible. A child who feels safe and accepted is much more likely to take on new experiences.

Early childhood: an important time in a child's development

In Alberta, the kindergarten program is based on the following beliefs relating to young children, their learning, and their home and community environments.

- Children develop through similar stages, but at individual rates.
 The kindergarten program provides learning experiences that
 meet individual and group needs, interests and developmental
 levels. Your local school board will provide you with information
 as to the additional supports available to children with special
 education needs and their families.
- Young children are naturally curious and eager to learn. They
 benefit from developing positive relationships with others,
 including children of their own age. The kindergarten program
 provides opportunities for children to learn about their
 environment through organized activities, purposeful play and
 cooperation with others.
- Parents are their children's first and most important teachers and play a central role in the lives of their children. The Kindergarten program supports and respects the dignity and worth of the family and encourages parents to participate in their children's education.
- The kindergarten program plays a role in the coordination of community services for young children and their families.
 Kindergarten programs are operated either by a school board, in a similar way to programs for Grade 1 to Grade 12, or by an ECS private operator. A private operator is a nonprofit society with an elected board of parents and community members.
 Children enter kindergarten in a variety of settings in Alberta, including schools, community facilities and daycare centres.
 Some kindergarten classes are totally separate from other

classes, others are part of an elementary school, kindergarten to Grade 6, and a few are members of a whole school community from Kindergarten to Grade 12.

2. What is French immersion?

The long-term goals of the French immersion program are:

- 1. full mastery of the English language
- 2. functional fluency in French
- 3. understanding and appreciation of the French culture

In Alberta, many parents have chosen to give their child the opportunity to learn French by enrolling them in a French immersion program. Such programs, designed for non-Francophones, are an effective way for students to become functionally fluent in French while achieving all of the learning outcomes of the regular programs of study. 1 Graduates from French immersion programs achieve a level of fluency in the target language that allows them to pursue their post-secondary studies in French or to accept employment in a workplace where French is the main language of communication.

Recent studies show not only that learning another language can have a positive impact on your child's first language, but also that it actually enhances learning in all areas. Current research has shown that exposure to a second language can:

- enhance the complexity of a person's first-language syntax;
- enhance their language-use skills (using narrative strategies, reading and writing in the first language, learning vocabulary);
- enhance non-linguistic skills in areas such as divergent thinking, metalinguistics, attitudes toward others and mathematics.

For more information about French immersion ...

Alberta Education's Yes, You Can

Help! Information and Inspiration for French Immersion Parents

Canadian Parents for French (CPF), Alberta Branch: http://www.cpfalta.ab.ca or the national website: http://www.cpf.ca

French immersion kindergarten is the first step in your child's journey towards acquiring another language and gaining an appreciation of its culture. At the same time, it offers the possibility of a range of other cognitive, social, cultural and economical benefits.

There are many delivery models for French immersion in Alberta

- Early immersion students begin their immersion experience in Kindergarten and continue in the program to Grade 12.
- Late immersion the entry point may vary but is typically Grade 7.

Parents are encouraged to contact their local school board for information about which schools in their area offer these programs.

¹ See Appendix 1 for a table illustrating the differences between the French immersion program and the Francophone program.

3. What distinguishes the French immersion kindergarten program from the regular kindergarten program?

Learning expectations of the 'French immersion kindergarten program" are essentially the same as those in the program offered to all other kindergarten children in Alberta. Learning expectations of the French immersion kindergarten program are essentially the same as in the program offered to all other kindergarten children in Alberta, and is centred on the whole child. It takes into account the child's particular needs and strengths, learning style and interests. The early French immersion program, also called total immersion, utilizes French as the language of instruction for the majority of class time (100% of class time in French is the goal). The French immersion approach is based on the premise young children learn a second language best when a "gentle approach" is used. They learn French in somewhat the same way they acquired their first language at home.

Young children learn a second language best through a "gentle approach".

The teacher welcomes the children into the program and progressively introduces them to the kindergarten environment and the French language. The children are given time to become acquainted with each other and with classroom activities and materials. Gradually, children gain a sense of belonging because they know the routines and school layout. Instructional strategies and materials support the acquisition of the French language by building on the language skills the children have already acquired in their first language. With encouragement and time, children show increasing confidence in using the words they learn in French to express themselves and their learning, just as they learned to speak their first language through repetition, imitation and trial and error, moving from uttering single words to saying simple sentences.

The French immersion kindergarten program exposes the child to rich and varied language activities to promote the acquisition of French in meaningful ways. The child learns to think in French over time by building two distinctive labels for one concept. All this helps the child to develop the fundamentals of language that are the building blocks for listening, reading, speaking and writing in French.

4. What can we expect to see in our child's first year in French immersion?

Each child follows their unique path and will learn in their own particular way.

You may worry about your child feeling insecure or frustrated in a total immersion setting; however, what research tells us is reassuring. In *So You Want Your Child to Learn French*, Weber and Tardif report: "During the first days of school, we carefully observed both the regular and immersion students with some of parents' most often voiced concerns in mind. However, contrary to our expectations, the second-language element did not really seem to be a major source of frustration or difficulty for the children. The video recordings and interview clearly show that the children were able to construct much meaning from the immersion situation even at the beginning of the year ... Many of the children, for example, offered the following explanations of how they came to understand the teacher's French: 'I just listen very hard and my

brain figures it out'; 'I think of a word in English it sounds like'; 'I ask the teacher'."(pp. 55–60)

The French immersion kindergarten program provides learning experiences that meet the developmental needs of all children. Children move through similar stages, but with their own pattern and at their own rate of development and learning. When children enter the Kindergarten program, there may be as much as a year's difference in age between the oldest and the youngest—one-fifth of their lifetime! Taking this into account, Alberta Education's guide to French immersion parents, Yes, You Can Help! — A Guide for French Immersion Parents states, "As a general rule of thumb, children who participate in an immersion kindergarten (half days) will have gradually switched from English sentences with French words and phrases thrown in to French interspersed with some English by Christmas of Grade 1." (p. 16).

The French immersion kindergarten program is based on the belief that all children can learn. It is important to remain positive and encouraging even though your child has not yet demonstrated any visible learning. Some children wait to speak until they feel confident in their ability to speak in French well. Each child follows their unique path and will learn in their own particular way. The French immersion kindergarten program respects these differences.

5. How can we prepare our child for French immersion?

The French immersion program is designed for non-French speaking children. These children and their parents are not expected to have any knowledge of French or any Francophone heritage.

Prepare your child for school just as you would if he were entering the English stream.

Alberta Education's publication, <u>Yes, You Can Help! – Information</u> and Inspiration for French Immersion Parents, states: "The best advice we can give when enrolling your child in an early French immersion program is to prepare him for school just as you would if he were entering the English stream, from ensuring that he can manage his own jacket and shoes to making him comfortable spending time away from you. Anything you can do to familiarize him with the school, the playground, the teacher (if possible during the spring), future classmates (if you don't know any of the other parents, you should meet them at the spring information / orientation meeting), the route to and from school, and the routine he'll follow in the fall will make the transition that much smoother. Most, if not all, of the children in his class will have no prior knowledge of French, so don't feel it's necessary to put him in a French pre-school or daycare. On the other hand, it's a good idea to expose him to a little French beforehand so that he can enjoy some familiarity with the sound of the language: a French cartoon on the TV, a segment of Sesame Street, a bit of French music on a children's tape or compact disc." (p. 50)

What are young children like?

Young children are developing socially, physically, intellectually, creatively and emotionally. All these areas are related to each other and dependent on one another. Early childhood is a time of rapid intellectual growth and development. The development of the intellect is influenced by social, physical, creative and emotional growth. The learning of French in kindergarten is facilitated not only because of the receptiveness of the child's brain at this stage but also by the holistic approach of the kindergarten program.

The French immersion kindergarten program provides learning experiences that meet the developmental needs of all children. The following descriptions of developmental characteristics are typical of most, but not all, children in kindergarten.

1. Social Development

Kindergarten children are becoming more socially oriented and are making friends with children of their own age, although these friendships may change frequently. They are learning to share, cooperate and play in groups. They are increasing their awareness of a variety of social behaviours and situations, such as being friends, taking turns, being fair and having conflicts. Adults, especially family, are still very important; their support and approval help children adjust to unfamiliar situations.

2. Physical Development

Kindergarten children are moving into a time of slower growth after the rapid growth of the early years. They have better control of their large muscles than of their small muscles, and continue to develop abilities, such as running, hopping, climbing, balancing and jumping. They may have some difficulty with small materials, such as writing tools, scissors and shoelaces. They are increasing their ability to control and coordinate movements, such as throwing, kicking and catching a ball. They are learning to use all of their senses, but their vision and hearing are not yet fully developed.

Children of this age are full of energy. They tire easily, but recover quickly. Sitting still for long periods of time is difficult, so they need a balance of active and quiet times.

3. Intellectual Development

Kindergarten children are gaining knowledge of objects, relationships and events in their immediate experience by doing, observing, imitating and exploring. They are developing fundamental thinking skills related to their direct experiences, but their reasoning, memory and problem-solving skills are still limited. They are beginning to plan and think ahead, but often think and act in the here-and-now. They still view things mainly from their

own perspective, but are becoming more able to understand the views of others. They are developing the ability to pay attention for longer periods of time, and their memory is increasing.

Young children's hearing and speaking vocabularies increase rapidly, and they love to talk. They develop their ability to stay on topic, take turns and tell stories. They ask many questions about the world around them. They experiment with the sounds of language and begin to express their ideas in pictures and writing. They develop a "sense of story" through listening, reading and viewing.

4. Creative Development

Kindergarten children want to express their personal ideas and feelings, and they need people to listen and respond to them. They explore, experiment and create, using a variety of materials. Their work becomes more detailed, and they talk about what they have created. They often take part—spontaneously and imaginatively—in music, dancing and movement. In dramatic play, young children experiment with different roles and discover new solutions to problems. The process of creating is often more important to them than the end product.

5. Emotional Development

Emotional development includes experiencing and expressing feelings, and developing independence, decision-making skills and initiative.

Kindergarten children display their emotions easily, intensely and visibly. They are developing the ability to understand and differentiate between their own emotions and those of others. They are learning socially appropriate ways to express their emotions. They want to do things themselves to demonstrate their growing confidence and independence. They are ready to take on more responsibilities and are developing a sense of self—a feeling of being different from others. They may also express fears and show anxiety when separated from familiar people, places and things.

How do children learn in French immersion kindergarten?

Purposeful play is an important way children learn.

Young children see the world differently than older students and adults, and they learn best through direct, sensory experience. They need to manipulate, explore and experiment with real objects. They learn by doing, moving and talking. Educators and psychologists refer to play as the serious work of childhood. Children at play are highly motivated and capable of intense concentration.

In the French immersion kindergarten classroom, as in a regular kindergarten program, children are busy playing and learning together in varied activity centres. Learning centres give children the opportunity to explore and discover, and take responsibility for selecting and completing a variety of activities. Some learning centres may be available all year. Others are introduced for special projects, interests or at seasonal times. Workspaces, activities and materials are organized in response to the children's diverse needs, interests and activities, while taking into account the expectations of the kindergarten program.

The learning environment is organized to actively engage the child in learning and using the French language.

On closer observation, one can see how children integrate the French language in regular activities. Children interact with each other while exploring ideas and the world around them, and as they do so, they imitate the songs and expressions they learned in French and begin to use French words for objects and actions in their play. As children play, they are clarifying information, integrating experiences from previous experiences, and exploring and experimenting with their environment. In the French immersion classroom, children also clarify their understanding of the French language, integrate new words, and explore and experiment with the language through their play.

Through play, children learn to deal with their feelings, interact with others and resolve conflicts. These moments provide opportunities for a broad and rich development of French language. Through play, children also develop their imagination, creativity and ability to solve problems and the French immersion classroom offers ample opportunity to support language development in these areas. For example, walls covered with French print materials, shelves displaying assorted French-language books, audio and visual materials, and a variety of language activities supported by visuals and mime encourage children in their active learning of the language and the mastering of skills.

What do children learn in French immersion kindergarten?

French immersion students are required to study the same curriculum as students registered in the English program. The only difference is that they learn about core subjects such as Mathematics, Health, Science, Social Studies in the French language. In addition, they take French Language Arts. Some complementary subjects, such as Art, Music and Physical Education, may be taken in French as well.

Learning in kindergarten is integrated and holistic.

The <u>Kindergarten Program Statement (2008)</u> outlines expectations in seven learning areas. In French immersion, in addition to the seven learning areas, the <u>Programme d'éducation pour la maternelle – Immersion (2008)</u> (the French immersion kindergarten program) outlines expectations in an eighth learning area known in English as Early Learning Skills. This component of French immersion kindergarten programming takes in the building up of positive attitudes, self-reliance, motor skills, a sense of responsibility, creativity and the elements of personal management needed for effective learning in all subjects and any context.

The following French immersion kindergarten program learning areas, at the exception of Early Learning Skills, are equivalent to those found in the regular kindergarten program:

French Immersion Kindergarten Program	Regular Kindergarten Program
French Language Arts (littératie précoce)	Early Literacy
Études sociales : savoir vivre ensemble	Citizenship and Identity
Éducation physique	Physical Skills and Well-Being
Santé et préparation pour la vie	Personal and Social Responsibility
Sensibilisation à l'environnement	Environment and Community Awareness
Expression et appréciation artistiques	Creative Expression
Mathématiques (numératie précoce)	Early Numeracy
Habiletés personnelles (Early Learning Skills)	

Learning in kindergarten is integrated and holistic. The French immersion kindergarten expectations, which are clearly defined in the <u>Programme d'éducation pour la maternelle – Immersion (2008)</u> (the French immersion kindergarten program), include a list of general and specific outcomes. Children's personal learning rhythms, growth and specific needs are always considered in the planning of the learning environment.

The eight learning areas describe what young children need to learn to prepare for entry into Grade 1 and to provide a foundation

for later success. Most importantly, they address the social, physical, intellectual, creative and emotional dimensions of each child.

A brief summary of general expectations for each kindergarten area of learning can be found in <u>My Child's Learning: A Parent Resource</u> under the kindergarten tab. In addition, the complete description of each learning area can be found in the <u>Kindergarten Program Statement (2008)</u>. As French Language Arts and Early Learning Skills are two components specific to learning in the French Immersion program, a summary of both learning areas follows.

French Language Arts (Early Literacy)

In the daily routines and experiences of the French immersion kindergarten, each child will gradually build on his comprehension of French oral communication as they participate in shared reading and listening experiences through the use of picture books, fairy tales, rhymes, stories, photographs, illustrations and videos.

Listening skills are emphasized throughout all activities in order to stimulate language acquisition. As your child progresses and his knowledge of French expands, he will be introduced to more vocabulary and language structures. This is done while talking about everyday events and the world he lives in.

The rhythm and melody of French songs make language acquisition a pleasure. Through games and play situations, your child will be invited to imitate and repeat words and sentences. He will begin to integrate new vocabulary in his everyday communication. Mimes and gestures, voice pitch, context and illustrations will all contribute greatly to your child's language acquisition. Eventually, your child will be able to initiate a conversation in French.

Many types of books, stories, poems, recordings and videos will be used to develop language prediction skills, to encourage your child to ask questions, make comments and express their feelings and experiences. Your child will also express his ideas, experiences and his imaginary world through the use of pictures, letters or words. He will learn to use illustrations to give him information about the books he is reading. He will start to understand that letters and words have a specific meaning. He will begin to recognize, copy and write familiar words and letters in French, thereby reinforcing and building on language skills already developed. Furthermore, studies have shown that his language skills in both languages are reinforced as he is exposed to a language rich environment outside of school.

_

² Reading: A child begins the process of becoming a reader as he turns the pages of a book and follows the words with a finger as he is being read to or as he examines the illustrationsof the book.

Early Learning Skills

This learning area focuses on building positive attitudes so that your child will see himself as a competent and capable learner, making him more willing to try new things and take risks. Your child will be encouraged to become more independent and learn to take responsibility for selecting and completing learning activities. He will understand the rules and routines of his learning environment and accept them as ways that help people work and play together.

Your child will also take part in developmentally appropriate activities that specifically support the development of his gross and fine motor skills, essential building blocks for developing the coordination and control needed in a range of activities from writing, drawing and building to pursuing active pursuits.

Our Child's Personal Needs and Progress

1. How and why is children's learning assessed in kindergarten?

Assessment is a natural, ongoing and important part of daily learning.

Assessment is an integral part of learning. Your child demonstrates his learning in appropriate and practical ways in an encouraging and supportive environment. He shows his disposition to learn through his curiosity and persistence in learning activities, his ability to adapt to new situations, and his contribution to group activities. By questioning and talking to your child, listening to the language he uses and observing his behaviour, adults gain information about his levels of skill and understanding. Throughout the kindergarten year, the teacher will observe and record your child's learning and progress in relation to the expectations for the eight learning areas included in the *Programme d'éducation pour la maternelle – Immersion (2008)* (the French immersion kindergarten program).

For more information about assessment in kindergarten, please refer to the resource <u>My Child's Learning: A Parent Resource</u>. A more detailed description can be found within the resource under the <u>How Your Child Is Assessed</u> tab.

2. If my child has special needs, how will the French immersion kindergarten program meet these needs?

Early Childhood Services (ECS) is a program based on the belief that all children can learn. Early Childhood Services (ECS) is a program based on the belief that all children can learn. School boards and private operators are responsible for meeting the special education needs of ECS children. In ECS programs, including those within the French immersion kindergarten program, children with a variety of needs and skill levels work and learn together. The teacher ensures that all children are included in activities that help them build on their

For more information on special needs, please visit:

http://education.alberta.ca/francais/admin/speced/parents/immersion.aspx

The Standards for the Provision of Early Childhood Special Education which provides information on the requirements for school boards and ECS private operators.

The Learning Team: A Handbook for Parents of Children with Special Needs which provides a general overview of how parents can become involved in the education of their children.

The Journey: A Handbook for Parents of Children Who Are Gifted and Talented which provides information and strategies for nurturing your child's learning and emotional well-being at home, in school, and in the community.

own level of learning.

Some young children may have special intellectual, emotional, sensory, physical or communication needs that affect their learning. Others experience situations that can also influence their learning, such as frequent changes of residence or significant changes in the home environment.

Children with special education needs are identified so that they and their families may receive appropriate services and support. For example, children identified with special education needs may enter an ECS program at a younger age to access early education services. Some children will need special supports or adaptations, such as personal help or large print books. These approaches allow children to increase their potential for learning and to make the most of learning opportunities.

Schools may provide information to parents about available community services to assist them in meeting the needs of their children. Community services may include health, social and family support agencies, recreational and cultural associations, and a wide variety of other groups that work with children in the community. Coordination of services supports the integrated learning needs of children.

There is a wide range in children's abilities and development throughout the ECS years. Parents who are concerned about their child's learning needs should contact the teacher.

3. How will the French immersion kindergarten program prepare my child for Grade 1?

The French immersion kindergarten experience will enhance your child's personal development and will give him a growing sense of responsibility. The program teaches them how to try new things with confidence, creativity and a "can do" attitude. Your child's endurance and stamina will build gradually over the year.

Parents across Alberta have noticed how kindergarten gives their children a strong disposition for learning in a school environment. Children become familiar with the expectations of teachers and are motivated and focused to take on new challenges. Most children leave the kindergarten program after one year, ready to move on to Grade 1. In some cases though, a child needs more time before going on to the Grade 1 class. This is a decision that parents and teachers make together.

Parents and teachers working together will help to ensure a successful educational experience for children.

4. How can parents be involved?

As a parent, your role in your child's life is central. You are responsible for meeting your child's physical, social and emotional needs. You are the child's first teacher, and family influences are lifelong.

When children begin French immersion kindergarten, parents and teachers enter into a partnership to support children's learning. For the well-being of their children, parents are encouraged to become involved in the French immersion kindergarten experience, to the degree that both teacher and parent feel is appropriate. Parents can share expertise and skills with the class, help organize activities or school/family functions, assist on field trips, prepare materials at home, and give ideas or input to the program.

■ AT SCHOOL

Each teacher invites parents to get involved in various ways. Even if you don't speak or understand French, your presence is very precious to your child and to the teacher. You can participate in classroom or outside activities. Some French immersion kindergarten teachers have scheduled helper days, while others encourage more informal, drop-in visits.

Here are some typical tasks carried out by parents in the French immersion kindergarten classroom:

- · assisting at a learning centre
- helping with snacks
- listening, with the children, to the reading of a book
- learning new French vocabulary with the children
- · supervising simple games
- · obtaining, preparing or cleaning materials
- sharing personal expertise with the children
- organizing and supervising the classroom library
- listening as children read or share a nursery rhyme
- preparing materials for art activities
- helping children with their clothing
- assisting with field trips or special activities
- providing clerical assistance (typing, filing, sorting or photocopying for the teacher)
- preparing bulletin board displays
- preparing charts, posters and booklets.

As well, most kindergarten programs have a parent committee called a Local Advisory Committee (LAC), and privately operated kindergartens maintain a governing board. Parents may wish to serve in a formal position or in a supporting role. All public, separate and charter schools now have a school council, and the LAC, or governing board of a private operator, may be directly involved in this council.

It is often a good idea for parents to get to know each other and build a social network. Children of a French immersion kindergarten class may continue to go to school together. Parents who meet in the kindergarten room could end up sitting together at the Grade 12 graduation banquet table!

For more information on the role of school councils, please visit: http://education.alberta.ca/parents/r ole/schoolcouncils.aspx

The <u>Alberta School Council</u>
<u>Resource Manual</u> can be consulted on Alberta Education's Website or purchased through the <u>Learning</u>
<u>Resource Centre</u>.

A list of typical questions many parents have for the school is included in Appendix 2.

Communication between the school and the families in this first year is very important to the children and their parents. It is common practice for kindergarten teachers to use newsletters, notes and telephone calls to share information with parents. In turn, you are encouraged to become involved and communicate with your child's teacher and school with any concerns.

Below are but a few suggestions on how you can continue to support your child's French immersion kindergarten experience through athome activities.

■ AT HOME

Things you can do to help develop your child's first language and culture:

- read stories aloud at bedtime
- tell your own stories and share your childhood experiences with your child
- sing songs, nursery rhymes and poems with your child, putting the emphasis on similarities and differences in sounds
- · help your child to print his or her name
- be a reader and a writer, in order to provide a role model for your child
- use good speech, as a model for your child's language skills
- celebrate and encourage your child's early attempts to communicate through writing and reading
- listen to your child and encourage him to talk about everyday activities
- expose your child to your own traditions, folklore and stories.

Things you can do at home to support your child's French language learning

- include some French in your everyday home life, for example, watching a French program on television, a video, attending a cultural event in French or listening to a CD of French songs. (You'll learn some French too, and the whole family will have fun!)
- review the French vocabulary of the week or month with your child
- listen to, repeat, recite, sing along with your child as he shares his latest French song, rhyme or story.

Things you can do at home to encourage your child to be more self-sufficient

- encourage your child to make decisions by offering him choices
- encourage your child to take responsibility for some tasks
- provide opportunities for your child to practise buttoning, doing zippers, drawing, cutting, blowing nose and tying shoelaces.

Things you can do at home to promote your child's good health to be more self-sufficient

- ensure plenty of rest, with early bedtimes
- ensure that your child eats a variety of nutritious foods from each food group

 encourage your child to walk, stretch, hop, jump, run, dance or skip, both indoors and outdoors.

Things you can do at home to nurture your child's artistic growth and creativity

- reserve an area in your home for drawing, painting, building or sculpture making. Basic materials such as coloured crayons, paper, accessories for role-playing and homemade musical instruments will be enough to trigger your child's creative mind
- encourage your child to solve everyday problems and find new solutions
- be positive and encouraging when your child is drawing, painting, dancing, playing music and role-playing. Ask questions about what he is doing and follow his lead when playing
- display your child's artwork at his eye level in a special place in your house; he will get the message that you value his work
- avoid giving your child models of objects and things to copy or imitate. Your child's creations are much more real and meaningful to him. Value the authenticity of his artwork.
- · encourage your child to listen to a variety of music
- expose your child to the works of many artists: visit an art gallery, attend a music recital, dance performance or play
- invite your child to observe colours, shapes, textures, sounds and smells in his environment.

Include your child in everyday activities to practice new skills and explore new concepts

- baking—have your child help to measure ingredients
- walking—encourage your child to observe his environment and to develop an active lifestyle
- shopping—point out the names of stores, gas stations, businesses, restaurants and schools; notice traffic signs
- gardening—give the child a small section to plant and care for
- writing—include a note from your child in letters to family; have the child write telephone messages and lists
- cleaning and tidying up—help the child sort toys into categories: cars, blocks, dishes, puzzles.

Working together is just as important as completing the task.

Young children need lots of

encouragement in their learning.

practice and patient

■ AFTER THE KINDERGARTEN DAY

Parents are in the best position to help children make connections between past experiences and current ones. Each new experience adds to a child's knowledge, and when the child shares an experience with an adult, there is great potential for reinforcing the learning. Parents are in the best position to help children make connections between past experiences and current ones.

Still, talking with children about their experiences in French immersion kindergarten sounds easier than it is! The question,

"What did you learn in school today?" often receives the response, "Nothing. All we did was play!"

These are some alternative questions that might help your child share more specific information with you:

What new French word did you learn today?

- How did you make that?
- What are you learning about now?
- What learning centres did you go to today?
- What was in the sand table today?
- Can you tell me about the story you heard today?
- Where did you play today?
- Who did you play with today?

5. Where can I find more information?

A list of useful resources for parents is included in Appendix 3.

Many French immersion kindergarten programs have resources available for parents on a variety of topics, such as child development, discipline, parenting, health issues and community programs. Your French immersion kindergarten teacher and/or school principal may suggest other places to look for information, such as libraries, local agencies or government offices.

Be sure to visit the Alberta Education Website at http://education.alberta.ca Two important sources of information are the <u>Alberta Education</u> <u>Website</u> and the non-profit organization <u>Canadian Parents for</u> <u>French</u>. Contact information can be found in Appendix 3.

Information Regarding the Alberta Human Rights Act

On September 1, 2010, section 11.1 of the *Alberta Human Rights Act* comes into force. This section requires boards (including charter schools) to provide parents with notice where "courses of study, educational programs or instructional materials, or instruction or exercises ... include subject matter that deals primarily and explicitly with religion, human sexuality or sexual orientation." Where a parent makes a written request, teachers shall exempt the student, without academic penalty, from such instruction, course of study, educational program or use of instructional material. These requirements do not apply to incidental or indirect references to religion, religious themes, human sexuality or sexual orientation. For more information, refer to the *Guide to Education: ECS to Grade 12*.

Appendix 1: Differences between the French immersion program and the Francophone program

In both the French immersion and Francophone programs, French is the language of communication and learning. However, the two programs are quite different because they have different goals and serve different clienteles.

French Immersion Program	Francophone Program
Goals	Goals
functional fluency in French	mastery of French as a first language
mastery of English understanding and appreciation of the French culture the development of a positive identity as a French language learner	mastery of English
	cultural integration and the development of a strong identity and a sense of belonging to the Francophone community
	presence of French in all aspects of school as well as in community and home life
	making the school an extension of the Francophone family and community in order to support children and their families in linguistic and cultural growth
Clientele	Clientele
children whose mother tongue is not French, and whose parents have chosen to enroll them in French immersion in regions of Alberta where it is available	children whose parents have the right to French first language education for their children according to section 23 of the Canadian Charter of Rights and Freedoms

Appendix 2: Questions parents may want to ask the teacher

The information about kindergarten programs provided to parents during registration will likely answer questions about hours of operation, school telephone numbers, vacation dates, emergency procedures, field trips and transportation, as well as explaining the French immersion kindergarten program and daily routines. Other questions parents may want to ask include:

- Does the program run for the full year?
- Will there be extra costs for special activities or field trips?
- How many children will be in the classroom?
- When can I stay in the classroom with my child?
- How can I help my child at home?
- Do the children go outside for recess?
- Are there different school entrances for different grade levels?
- Does the French immersion kindergarten class mix with children in other grades? Are those children also registered in the French immersion program?
- What are the rules for the classroom, school and playground?
- How do you handle discipline in the classroom and playground?
- How do you help resolve conflicts between children?
- How do the children solve problems?
- How do you help children solve problems?
- My child seems different from the others—shy, rambunctious, younger, older, sickly, allergic, asthmatic, doesn't talk much, talks all the time. How will he/she fit in?
- How can parents be involved? What is the role of the Kindergarten Advisory Committee or governing board?
- How many teachers are on supervision at one time?
- What are the times when teachers supervise?
- How many children attend the school? At what grade levels?
- What are the orientation and start-up procedures?
- What reporting method is used?
- · When are report cards and conferences scheduled?
- How will my child's learning be assessed during the year?
- How is the snack/lunch program organized? My child has allergies to . . .
- Does my child need to bring any supplies for the year?
- Why do I need to sign a form to give permission to display my child's work outside the school or take photographs of him working at school?
- Will photos be taken during the year? Will I be able to get copies?
- Where is the outdoor play area?
- Do the children have regular access to a gymnasium and equipment?
- What services are available to the school; for example, health services, such as speech, dental, immunization; social and family support agencies; recreational and cultural associations?
- What is the difference between a Francophone, French immersion or French as a second language program? Which would be the most appropriate for my child?

Appendix 3: Parent resources

Suggested list of resources published by Alberta Education:

A Review of the Literature on Four Aspects of Second Language Learning (2004)

French Immersion Kindergarten

The Journey: A Handbook for Parents of Children Who Are Gifted and Talented (2004)

Alberta School Council Resource Manual (2005)

The Learning Team: A Handbook for Parents of Children with Special Needs (2003)

Standards for the Provision of Early Childhood Special Education (2006)

Yes, You Can Help! Information and Inspiration for French Immersion Parents (2011)

Other interesting resources:

Archibald, John. Boosting our children's potential with second language learning.

Weber, S. and C. Tardif (1990). The Young Child's View of Starting French Immersion, in So You Want Your Child to Learn French! Canadian Parents for French.

For more information, contact:

Canadian Parents for French (CPF), Alberta Branch

Box 34090, RPO Kingsway Edmonton, Alberta T2H 2V8

Tel.: 780-433-7311

1-899-433-6036

Fax: 780-433-7306

Email: info@cpfalta.ab.ca

Website: http://www.cpfalta.ab.ca

CPF's national Website: http://www.cpf.ca

French Language Education Services

Alberta Education 10044 - 108 Street NW Edmonton, Alberta T5J 5E6

Tel.: 780-427-2940 (Toll-free in Alberta by first dialing 780-310-0000)

Website: http://www.education.alberta.ca

Fax: 780-422-1947